Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Report on the Financial Statements

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Edelweiss Retail Finance
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the
Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary
of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

2. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements to
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
€erTor.

Auditors’ Responsibility
3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

4. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder including
the accounting standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report.

5. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Act and other applicable authoritative pronouncements issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and pronouncements require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

6. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view, in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

7. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

\._( \wluu//l

:’1, o

7 .,/‘_,.‘\a\N AAL _){_ \\x\:/\
/
{ ek Ghararad: m:jhﬂid”-ts )

Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP, 252, Veer Savarkar Marg, ‘Sh{i(z_,-: p(li"f\" Dﬂdm*{ We:.! }/
Mumbai - 400 028 S Mu mbﬂ\ '- ;__‘1.,-.
T: +91 (22) 66691500, F: +91 (22) 66547804 / 07 : )

\‘:J

Registered office and Head office: Sucheta Bhawan, 11A Vishnu Digambar Marg, New Delhi 110 002

Price Waterhouse (a Partnership Firm) converted into Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP (a Limited Liability Partnership with LLP identity no: LLPIN AAC-5001)
with effect from July 25, 2014. Post its conversion to Price Waterhouse Chartered Accounlants LLP, its ICAI registralion number is 012754N/N500016 (ICAI registration
number before conversion was 012754N)



Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Report on the Financial Statements

Page 2 of 3

Opinion

8.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2018, and its profit and
its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Other Matter

9.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2017, were audited by
another firm of chartered accountants under the Companies Act, 2013 who, vide their report
dated May 16, 2017, expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

10. As required by ‘the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016, issued by the Central

11.

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act (hereinafter referred
to as the “Order”), and on the basis of such checks of the books and records of the Company as
we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us, we
give in the Annexure B a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2018
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.
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(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in Annexure A.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact, if any, of pending litigations as at March 31, 2018
on its financial position in its financial statements — Refer Note 3.29;

il. The Company has made provision as at March 31, 2018, as required under the applicable
law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts—
Refer Note 3.6, 3.10 and 3.32. The Company did not have any derivative contracts as at
March 31, 2018.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2018;

iv. The reporting on disclosures relating to Specified Bank Notes is not applicable to the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2018.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016
Chartered Accountants

Sharad Agarwal

Mumbai Partner
May 02, 2018 Membership Number 118522
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Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 11 (f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Edelweiss
Retait Finance Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Act

1.

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Edelweiss Retail
Finance Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2.

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”)
and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls and both issued by the ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial

reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

6. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. Inouropinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016
Chartered Accountants

R

Sharad Agarwal
Mumbai Partner
May 02, 2018 Membership Number 118522
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i. (a)

(b)

()

ii.

iil.

iv.

vil. (a)

(b)

The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation, of fixed assets.

The fixed assets are physically verified by the Management according to a phased programme
designed to cover all the items over a period of three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the
programme, a portion of the fixed assets has been physically verified by the Management during
the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification.

The title deeds of immovable properties, as disclosed in Note 3.11 on fixed assets to the financial
statements, are held in the name of the Company.

The Company is in the business of rendering services, and consequently, does not hold any
inventory. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(ii) of the said Order are not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of
the Act. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(iii), (iii)(a), (iii)(b) and (ii1)(c) of the said Order are
not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loan or provided any guarantee or security in connection with
any loan taken by parties covered under section 185. Therefore, the provisions of section 185 are
not applicable to the Company. The Company is registered as a Non-Banking Financial Company
with the Reserve Bank of India. Therefore, the provisions of Section 186, except sub-section (1)
of Section 186, of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

Further, the Company has not made any investment to the parties covered under Section 186 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and accordingly the provisions of Clause 3(iv) of the said Order in
respect of Section 186 (1) is not applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73,
74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified.

The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the products of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues in respect of provident fund, income tax, though there has been a slight delay in
a few cases, and is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including employees’ state
insurance, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs , duty of excise, value added tax, cess goods and
service tax with effect from July 1, 2017 and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with
the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no dues of income tax, sales-tax, service-tax, duty of customs, duty of
excise, value added tax or goods and service tax which have not been deposited on account of
any dispute.
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viii.

xi.

xii.

xiii.

Xiv.

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation
given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to any financial
institution or bank or Government or dues to debenture holders as at the balance sheet date.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the moneys raised
by way of term loans and initial public offer (IPO) of debt instruments have been applied for the
purposes for which they were obtained. The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial
public offer of equity shares or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material
fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during
the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

The Company has not paid/ provided managerial remuneration and accordingly compliance in
accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Act is not applicable.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the
provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the
provisions of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of related party transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements as required under Accounting Standard (AS) 18, Related
Party Disclosures specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions of
Clause 3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not entered into any non- cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with him / her. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

The Company is required to, and has been registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934 as a Non- Banking Financial Institution.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016
Chartered Accountants

Sharad Agarwal

Mumbai Partner
May 02, 2018 Membership Number 118522



Iidelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Balance Sheet

as on 31 Muarci 2018

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Millions) As at As al
Nole 31 March 2018 31 March 2017

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholders' funds

(a) Shaie capital 31 429.50 329.50
(b) Resetves and surplus 32 2917.24 2,805.43
4,346,74 3,134.93
Non-cusrrent liabilities
(a) Long-tems borro wings 33 26,598,42 6,588.58
(b) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 34 22,96 -
{c) Other long-term Liabilities 35 211,94 2:0.87
(d) Long-term provisions 36 118.70 95.66
* 21,252.02 6935 11
Current liabilities

() Short-term borrowings 3.7 2,867.63 1.751.00

(b) Trade payables 38

(A) total oulstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises -
(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro

enterprises and small enterprises 539.31 396.80
(c) Other current liabilities 3.9 4,879.01 324827
(d) Shorl-lerm provisions 3.10 124.87 56.74
8,410.82 5,446 81
TOTAL - 34,009.58 15,5685
ASSETS
Non-current zassets
(a) Fixed Assets 311
(i) Property, Plant and equipment 50.11 929
(ii) Intangible assets 2.66 3.31
(iir) Intappibles under development 6.06 1.00
(b) Deferred tax assets (net) 34 - 21.92
(c) Long-terin loans and advances 312 19,542.79 7,706.41
(d) Other non-cuirent assets 313 3.56 42 00
19,606.58 7.783.93
Current assets
(a) Trade receivables 314 12.14 -
(b) Cash and bank balances 315 233.73 7221
(c) Short-term loans and advances 316 13,769.53 7.296.37
(d) Other currernt assets 317 387.90 364.34
14,493.00 7,732 92
TOTAL 34.209.58 1551685
The accompanying rotes are an integral part of the financial statcnents 2&3

This is the Belance Sheet reterred to in our report of even date

Tor Prive Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLF For and on bel:alf of the Board of Direcinss
Firm's Registration Number 012754N/N500016 Edelweiss Retzil Finance Limited
Chartered Accorntants

\.

u/ §
Sharad Agarwal Anii Kothuri Shalinee Mimani
Purtner Director 2 Direcior
Membership No: 118322 DIN: C0177945 DIN : 07404075

k \
Q\M&b@ wo Raps
Vineet Mahajfin Sudipta Majuimdar
Chief Vinancial Officer Company Secretary
Membership no - A33961

Mumbai - Mumnbai Mumbai

02 May 2018 02 May 2018 02 May 2018



Edelweceiss Retail Finance Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year ended 31 March 2018

(Cutrency : Indian Rupees in Millions)

Revenue from operations
Fee and commission income
Interest income

Other income

Total Revenue

Expenses

Employee benelits expenses
Finance costs

Depreciation and amortization
Other expenses

Total expenses

Profit before tax

Tax expense:

(1) Current tax (includes short provision for earlier years Rs. 3.55 miliion

(Previous year Rs. 0.03 million)

(2) Miniraum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit entitlement
(2) Deferred tax (net)

Protit for the year

Earnings per equity sharz (Face value Rs. 10 ¢achj:
Basic and diluted (in Rupees)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

This is the Satement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm's Registration Number 012754N/N500016
Chartered Accountants

Sharad Agarwal
Fartner
Membership No: 118522

Mumbai
(2 May 2018

Note
3.18

3.19
3.20

3.21
322
3.11
3.23

3.26

2&3

¢

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

272.12 187.20
3,380.77 2,338.16
23.33 9.98
3,676.22 2,535.34
339.61 215.71
1,600.79 1,161.19
15.01 332
1,240.91 665.82
3,196.32 2,046.04
479.90 489.30
174.57 181.01
(56.40) -
44.87 (11.17)
316.86 319.46
8.71 10.08

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Edclweiss Retail Finance Limited

\

Anil Kothuri
Director
DIN: 00177945

@/w} w

Vincet Mahgjan
Chief Financial Ojficer

Mumbai
02 May 2018
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Shalinee Mimani
Director

DIN : 07404075
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&mu.; Husiolea

Sudipta Majdmdar
Company Szcretary
Membership no -~ A33961
Mumbai

02 May 2018



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31 March 2018

(Currency : Indian Rupces in Millions)

A Cash flow from operating activities
Profii before tax
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortisation
Provision for standard assets
Provision for Restructured advances
Provision for non performing assets
Provision for credit loss on securitisation
Bar-debis and advance written off
Loss on sale of Fixed assets(net)
Operating cash flow before working capital changes

Add / (Less): Adjustinents for working capital changes
Increase in receivable from financing business

Increase / (Decrease) in other bank balances

Increase in other loans and advances

Decreas / (Increase) in other current and non current assets
Increase in liabilities and provisions

Cash used in operating activities

Income taxes paid (net of refund)

Net cash used in operating activities -A

B Cash flow {rom investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets
Net cash used in investing activities - B

C  Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance ot Shaie capital
Expenses on issue of non convertible debentures
Premium payable on redemption of nen convertible debentures
Redemption of privately placed non convertible debantures
Proceeds [rom public issue of non convertible debentures
Pioceeds from issue of subordinate-debt
Proceeds fiom private placement of non convertible debentures
Proceeds from issue of perpetual debt
Repayment of long term bortowings from related parties
Proceeds from term loan fiom banks
Proceeds from term loan from others
Pioceeds from short-term borrowings (net) (Refer note 1)
Repayment of term loan from banks
Repayment of term loan from Others
Net cash generated from financing activities - C

Net Increase / (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
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For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the vear ended
31 March 2017

475.90 489.30
15.01 3.32
71.25 9.64
(0.12) 291
29.76 (23.79)

(26.19) 30.14

287.20 225.54

0.32 0.02

863.13 737.08

(17,997.76) (1,002.61)
44.33 (64.33)
(553.40) (21.11)
14.77 (225.71)
1,236.10 358.83
(16,392.83) (217.85)
(116.51) (164.80)
(16.509.34) (382.65)
(60.96) (14.51)
0.36 0.47
(60.60) (14.04)
1,000,00 264.00
(133.44) E
(27.18) (90.47)
{1,000.00) (2,000.00)
4,916.22 -
1,240.00 120 00
1,000.00 -
450.00 s
- (290.00)
7,800.00 1,750.00.
2,550.00 .
1,116.69 1,194.65
(2,053.50) (683 90)
(83.00) -
16,775.79 264.28
205,84 (132.41)




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Cash Flow Statement
Jor the year ended 31 March 2018

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Millions) For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 7.88 140.29
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year (Refer note 3.15) 213.73 7.88
Notes:

1 Net figures have been rzported on account of volume of transactions
2 The Above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under "Indiizct Method” as set out n Accounting Standard - 3 "Cash Flow Staements” specified under section
133 of companies Act, 2013 read with Paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Ruies, 2014,

The acconipanying notes are an integral part of the financial statem:nts 2&3

This is the Cash Flow Satenient referred to in our report of even daie

For Price Waterkouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration Number 012754N/N500016 Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited-
Chartered Accountants b

- \
,ﬁm &/ %
Sharad Agarwal Anil Kotl ‘Shalinee Mimani
Partner Diregls Director
Membership No: 118522 DIN : 00177945 DIN : 07404075

@Mﬁh& [t TN,
X I e blpT Mefencunslen
Vineet Mahajim Sudipta Majumdar

Chief I inuncial Officer  Company Secretary
MMembership no - A33961
Mumbai Mumbai Mumbai
02 May 2018 02 May 2018 02 May 2018



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements

2.

1

138

1. Background

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited (‘ERFL’ or ‘the company’) is registered with the
Reserve Bank of India (RBI) as a Systemically Important Non Deposit Accepting Non-
Banking Financial company. The company was originally incorporated on February 18,
1997 as “Affluent Dealcom Private Limited” which subsequently got converted to public
limited company on January 1, 2014 and then the company’s name changed to “Edelweiss
Retail Finance Limited” with effect from January 6, 2014, The Company is a subsidiary of
Edelcap Securities Limited.

ERFL is primarily ¢engaged in the business of providing loans against property, business
loans, loan to real estate developers and rural finance loans.

2. Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The accompanying financial statements are prepared and presented in accordance with
Indian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) under the historical cost
convention, on the accrual basis of accounting , unless otherwise stated, and comply with
the accounting standards as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) rules, 2014, the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 (to the extent notified), provisions of the Companies Act, 19536 (to the exient
applicable) (hereinafter together referred to as ‘the Act’) and the Schedule III to the Act
and circulars and guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’). The financial
staternents are presented in Indian rupees in millions as applicable unlcss otherwise stated.

The Company being a NBFC registered with RBI follows the guidelines issued by the RBI,
in respect of income recognition, provisioning for nen-performing assets and valuation of
investments.

Use of estimates ‘

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with GAAP requiras the
Management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets,
liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements and
the reported amcunt of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. The estimates
and assumptions used in the accompanying financial statements are based upon
management’s evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as on the date of the
financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Any revision to
accounting estimates is reccgnised prospectively in current and future periods.
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

2.3

2.4

Current and non-current classification

All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current
Assets

An Asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a. It is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the
Company’s normal operating cycle;

b. Itis held primary for the purpose of being traded;
c. "It is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date; or

d. It is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or usad to
settle a liability for at Jeast twelve months after the reporting date.

Current Assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets.
All other assets are classified as non-current.

Liabilities

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
a. Itis expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle.
b. Itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
¢. Itis due to be settled within tweive months after the reporting date; or

d. The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability .for at least twelve months after the reporting date. Terms cf the liability
that cculd, at the option of the counierparty, results in its settlement by the issue of
equity instruments do not affect its classification.

Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities. All other
liabilities are classified as non-current.

Revenue recognition

a. Fees Income (net of Service Tax / Goods and Service Tax) including processing fees
are accounted on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms and contracts entered
into between the Company and the counterparty.

b.  Processing fee income (net of Service Tax / Goods and Service Tax) on loan against
propeérties is amortised over a period of 7 years or contractual period, whichever is
shorter. In case of small & medium enterprises loans (SME), processing fees (net of
Service ‘Tax / Goods and Service Tax) ccllected are amortised over coniractual
period. The unamortised balance is disciosed under “Other current liabilities” and
“Other long term liabilities” based on amortisable tenor. In the event of a loan being
foreclosed, securitised, assigned or written off, the unamortised portion of such
processing fees is recognised as income at the time of such foreclosure,
securitisation, assignment or write off.
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

2.4

2.6

Reverue recognition (continued)

c. Interest income is recognised on accrual basis. Interest income in case of lending
business is recognised on accrual basis except in case of non- performing assets,
wherein it is accounted on realisation, as per RBI guidelines. Loans are repaid by
way of Equated Monthly Instalments (EMIs), which comprise of principal and
interest. interest is calculated on outstanding balance at the beginning of a month.
EMIs generally commence only after the entire loan is disbursed. Pending
commencement of EMIs, pre-EMI interest is charged every month and is accounted
on accrual basis.

d.  Profit/loss earned on sale of investments is recognised on trade date basis. Profit/loss
on sale of investments is determined based on the weighted average cost of the
investments sold.

e.  Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.
Penal interest income on delayed EMI or Pre-EMI is recognized on receipt basis.

g.  Charges levied like cheque bouncing charges, loan conversion charges etc are
recognized on receipt basis.

h.  Interest income on fixed deposits with banks is recognised on time proportion basis.

Provisioning on receivables froni financing business

Provision for non-performing assets is based on the management’s assessment of the
degree of impairment of the loan asset and the level of provisioning required as per the
prudential norms prescribed by RBI.

Provisions against standard assets are made on the basis of prudential norms prescribed by
RBI.

Fixed assets and depreciation
Property, plunt & equipment

Property, plant & equipment are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less
accumulated depreciation and impairment if any. The cost of Property, plant & equipment
comprises of purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition for its intended use.

Depreciation is provided on a written down value basis from the date the asset i$ ready for
its intended use or put to use whichever is earlier. In respect of assets sold, depreciation is
provided upto the date of disposal. '

As per the requirement of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has
evaluated the useful lives of the respective fixed assets which are as per the provisions of
Part C of the Schedule for calculating the depreciation. The useful lives of the fixed assets
are as follows:
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

2.6

Fixed assets and depreciation (continued)

“Nature of assets Estimated
useful life
Office Equipment 5 years
Vehicles - 8 years
Computer and data processing units-End user devices, such as Desktops, 3 years"
laptops, etc. - B

Intangible fixed assets

Intangible fixed assets are recorded at the consideration paid for the acquisition of such
assets and are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment, if any.

Intangibles such as software are amortised over a period of 3 years or estimated useful life,

» whichever is shorter life.

Employee benefits

The accounting policy followed by the Company in respect of its employee benefit
schemes in accordance with Accounting Standard 15 (revised 2005), is set out below:

Provident fund

The Company contributes to a recognised provident fund which is a defined contribution
scheme. The contributions are accounted for on an accrual basis and recognised in the
statement of profit and loss. '

Gratuity

The Company’s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation
in respect of the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future
bencfit that the employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior
periods, that benefit is discounted to determine its preseni valve, and the fair value of any
plan assets, if any, is deducted.

The present value of the obligation under such benefit plan is determined based on
actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method which recognises each period
of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures
each unit separately to build up the {inal obligation.

The obligation is measured at present values of estimated future cash flows. The
discounted rates used for determining the present value are based on the market yields cn
Government Securitics as at the balance sheet date.

Changes in the present value of definéd obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailiients are recognised immediately in statement of profit or loss as past service cost.

Actuarial gains end losses arising {from experience adjustments and change in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they
arise.
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

Employce benefits (continited)

Compensated Absences

The eligible employees of the Company are permitted to carry forward certain number of
their annual leave entitlement to subsequent years, subject to a ceiling. The Company
recognises the charge to the statement of profit and loss and corresponding liability on
account of such non-vesting accunulated leave entitlement based on a valuation by an
independent actuary.

Impairment of assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an
asset may be impaired based on internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, the
Company cstimates the recoverable amount of the asset. The recoverable amount is higher
of the assets net selling price and the value in use which means the present value of future
cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of the asset and it’s eventual disposal.
If such recoverable amount of the asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment
loss and is recognized in the profit and loss account. If at the balance sheet date there is an
indication that a previously assessed impairment. loss no longer exists, the recoverable
amount js reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount subject to a
maximum of the depreciable historical cost.

Investments

Investments are classified into non-current investments and current investments.
Investments which are intended to be held for one year or rore are classified as long term
investments and investments which are intended to be held for less than one year are
classified as current investments.

Long term investments are carried at cost less diminution in value which is other than
temporary, determined separately for each investment.

Current investments are carried at lower of cost and fair value. The comparison of cost
and fair value is done separately in respect of each category of investment. In case of
investments in mutual funds, the net asset value of units declared by the mutual funds is
considered as the fair value.

Loun origination costs

Loan origination costs comprise of costs paid to third party vendors and intermediaries for
loan acquisition, processing, field verification, legal evaluation, title search, fraud check,
technical valuation, etc. Such origination costs, directly attributable to disbursed loans,
except SME, are amortised over 7 years or original contract period, whichever is shorter.
SME Loans are amortised over original contractual period. The unamoitised balance is
disclosed as part of “Long-term loans and advances” and “Short-term loan and advances”
based on amortisable tenor. Where the loan is foreclosed, securitised or written off, the
unamortised portion of such loan origination costs are recognised as a charge to the
statement of profit and loss at the time of such foreclosure, securitisation or write off,
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Contintied)

2.11

2.12

Securitisation / Assignment

The Company enters into securitization/ assignment transactions and assets are
derecognized upon sale only if the Company surrenders control over the contractual rights
that comprise in the financial assets.

The Company has adopted the accounting policy for securitization / assignment
transactions, as notified by RBI in its circular “Revisions to the Guidelines on
Securitisation Transactions” issued on August 21, 2012.

Unrealised gain on loan transfer transactions comprises of future interest receivable under
par structure of securitisation.

Future interest receivable on loan transler transaction comprises of Company’s share of
future interest strip receivables in case of a par structure securitised deals.

Current and Deferred Tax

Tax expense comprises current tax (i.e. amount’ of tax for the year determined in
accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961), deferred tax charge or benefit (reflecting the
tax effect of timing differences between accounting income and taxable income for the

year).
Current tax

Provision for income tax is recognised based on estimated tax liability computed after
adjusting for allowances, disallowances and exemptions in accordance with the Income
Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred tux

The deferred tax charge or benefit and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities and assets
are recognized using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent there is reasonable
certainty that the asset can be realised in future; however, where there is unabsorbed
depreciation or carried forward loss under taxation laws, deferred tax assets are recognised
only if there is a virtual certainty of realisation of the assets with convincing evicence.
Deferred tax assets are reviewed as at each balance sheet date and written down or written-
up to reflect the amount that is reasonable/virtually certain (as the case may be) to be
realised.

Minimui Alternate Tax (MAT)

MAT credit asset is recognised where there is convincing evidence that the asset can be
realised in future. MAT credit assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date and written
down or written up to reflect the amount that is reasonably certain to be realised.
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

2.13  Earnings per share

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Accounting
Standard 20 — “Earnings Per Share” notified under section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014. Basic
earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity
shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year.

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or
other contracts to issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year. Diluted

earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attibutable to the equity
shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for
deriving basic earning per share and weighted average number of equity shares that could
have been issued upon conversion of all potential equity shares.

2.14  Provisions and contingencies

The Company creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past event

that probably requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a
possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an
outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect
of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is
made.

Provisions ate reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the curtent best
estimate. If it is no longer probable that the cutflow of resources weuld be required to
settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial siatements. However, contingent
assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an economic benefit will
arise, the asset and related income are recognised in the period in which the change occurs.

2.15  Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs include interest, amortisation of ancillary costs incurred and exchange
differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are 1egarded as an
adjustment to the interest cost. Interest cost in connection with the borrowing of funds to
the extent not directly related to the acquisition of qualifying assets are charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss over the tenure of the loan.

2.16  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, demand deposits with banks and other
fixed deposits with bank with original inaturities of three months or less.

2.17  Foreign Exchange transactions

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date
of the transaction. Exchange differences, if any arising out of transactions settled during
the year are recognised in the statement of profit and loss for the year.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at the balance sheet
date are translated at the closing exchange rates on that date. The resultant cxchange
differences, if any, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss and related assefs and
liabilities are accordingly restated in the balance sheet.
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to financial statements (Continued)
as on 31 March 2018

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Millions)
As at As at

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
3.1 Share capital

Authorised:
50,000,000 (Previous year: 50,000,000) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each 500.00 500.00
500.00 500.00
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up::
42,950,000 (Previous year: 32,950,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up 429.50 329.50
429.50 329.50
As at As at
Movement in share capital 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
h N h: Al
Equity Shares of Rs 10 each fully paid Number of shares ~ Amount umber of shares mount
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 32,950,000 329.50 29,950,000 299,50
Shares issued during the year 10,000,000 100.00 3,000,000 30,00
Qutstanding at the end of the year 42,950,000 429.50 32,950,000 329.50

During the year the Company issued 50,00,000 fully paid-up equity shares of Rs.10 each at a premium of Rs 90 each for the total consideration of Rs. 500.00
million to Edelweiss Financial Services Limited and 50,00,000 fully paid-up equity shares of Rs.10 cach at a premium of Rs 90 cach for the total consideration of
Rs. 500.00 million to Edelcap Securities Limited.

As at As at
Sharcj,s held by holding / ultimate holding company and / or their subsidiaries / 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
associates
Percentage Percentage
Number of shares shareholding Number of shares SRE ol
Edelcap Securities Limited, the holding company 30,258,333 70.45% 25,258,333 76.66%
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 9,691,667 22.57% 4,691,667 14.24%
Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited (formerly known as Arum Investments Private
Limited) 3,000,000 6.98% 3.000,000 9.10%
42,950,000 100.00% 32,950,000 100.00%
Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company: " Asat As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Iareed 1
Number of shares :::ec::lt:igne Number of shares S:];:(;:::;;;"
Equity Shares of Rs 10 each fully paid ) & 6
Edelcap Securities Limited 30,258,333 70.45% 25,258,333 76.66%
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 9,691,667 22.57% 4,691,667 14.24%
Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited (formerly known as Arum Investments Private
Limited) 3,000,000 6.98% 3,000,000 9. 10%
42,950,000 100.00% 32,950,000 100.00%

Rights, preferences and restriction attached to equity shares:

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of Rs 10. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitied to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

N

T
st Fip
1O 2 -

T
o5
s

\

x




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to financial statements (Continued)

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Millions)

3.2 Reserves and surplus
Capital Reserve

Securities Premium Account
Opening balance
Add : Capital infusion during the year
Less: Ixpenses on issue of privately placed non convertible debentures {net of tax of Rs.15.28 million
(Previous year Rs. Nil)]
Less: Expenses on issue of publicly placed non convertible debentures [net of tax Rs.30.90 million
(Previous year Rs. Nil)]
Less : Provision for premium payable on redemption of non convertible debentures [net of tax of Rs. 9.41 million
(Previous year Rs. 31.31 million)]

Debenture Redemption Reserve
Add : Transfer from Profit and Loss Account
Closing Balance

Special Reserve under Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, of India *
Opening balance
Add : Additions during the year

Surplus in statement of profit and loss
Opening Balance
Add: Net profit for the year
Amount available for appropriation
Appropriations:
Less: T'tinsfer to Special Reserve under Section 45-1C of the RBI Act, 1934
Less: Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve

* Represents reserve created @ 20% of the profit after tax for the year as per the provisions of section 45-IC of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
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As at
31 March 2018

As at
31 March 2017

8.18 8.18
2,152.92 1,978.08
900.00 234.00
28.87 -
58.41
17.77 59.16
2,947.87 2,152.92
8.99 -
8.99
128.96 65.07
63.37 63.89
192.33 128.96
515.37 259.80
316.86 319.46
832.23 579.26
63.37 63.89
8.99 -
759.87 515.37
3,917.24 2,805.43




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to financial statements (Continued)
as on 31 March 2018

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Millions)

33

3.3A

3.3C

Long-term borrowings
Secured
Non-convertible redeemable debentures [Refer note 3,3A]
a, Privately Placed Non-convertible debentures
b. Public issue of Non-convertible debentures
[Secured by pari pasu charge on immovable property and loans and advance]
Term loans from bank [Refer note 3.55(a)]
Term loans from others [Refer note 3,55(b)]
[Secured by pari pasu charge on receivables of the company]

Unsecured
Non-convertible redeemable subordinated debt (Refer note 3.3B)
Non-convertible non redeemable perpetual debt (Refer note 3.3C)

Repayment terms of Secured Non-convertible Debentures are as follow.

As at
31 March 2018

As at
31 March 2017

3,000.00 2,000.00
4,916.22
9,107.20 4,328.58
1,925.00 -
18,948.42 6,328.58
1,500.00 260.00
450,00 -
20,898.42 6,588.58

The debentures are secured by way of pari passu charge on an immovable property and standard loan assets to the extent of 100% of the outstanding

amount of the debentures, unless otherwise stated.

gqe):/relr:il;:lne (;;"esbeecnut:lerdesR(gi(e;)n;nble Non Rate Issue Date Red;::}e)tlon g(o:.bo: As at 31 March 2018 | As at 31 March 2017
ERFL/Public NCD/Series VI * 9.25% 22-Mar-2018 | 22-Mar-2028 483547 483.55 -
ERFL/Public NCD/Series V * 8.88% 22-Mar-2018 | 22-Mar-2028 409208 409.21 -
ERFL/Public NCD/Series [V * 9.00% 22-Mar-2018 | 22-Mar-2023 640817 640.82 -
ERFL/Public NCD/Series III * 8.65% 22-Mar-2018 | 22-Mar-2023 234347 234.35 -
ERFL/Public NCD/Series 1I * 8.75% 22-Mar-2018 | 22-Mar-2021 2984334 2,984.33 -
ERFL/Public NCD/Series | * 8.42% 22-Mar-2018 | 22-Mar-2021 163967 163.96 -
ERFL/NCD/07Nov22 8.50% 07-Nov-2017 | 07-Nov-2022 1000 1,000.00 -
ERTFL/NCD/19Aug20 9.00% 19-Aug-2015 | 19-Aug-2020 2000 2,000.00 2,000.00
ERFL/NCD/30Mar18 0.00% 31-Mar-2015 | 30-Mar-2018 250 - 250.00
ERFL/NCD/18Aug17 9.00% 19-Aup-2015 | 18-Aug-2017 750 - 750.00
Total 7,916.22 3.000.00
Of which Current maturities have been classified under other Current Liabilities (Refer Note -

No. 3.9) 1.000.00
Long Term borrowings (NCDs) 7,916.22 2,000.00

Note: * During the current year, the Company has raised Rs 4,916.22 million through public issue of 4,916,217 Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible
Debentures. As at March 31 2018, the Company has utilised the whole of the aforementioned proceeds towards the objects of the issue as stated in the
Prospectus, These debentures issued by the Company are listed on the BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

Repayment terms of Unsecured non-convertible redeemable subordinate debentures are as follow.

ISIN number Rate ssue Date | Redemption | No.of 1}y 31 March 2018 | As at 31 March 2017
Date NCDs
INE528508019 11.25% 25-May-2015 | 26-May-2025 140 140.00 140.00
INE528508027 9.95% 10-Oct-2016 | 09-Oct-2026 120 120.00 120.00
INE528808035 9.25% 31-Jul-2017 31-Jul-2027 240 240.00 -
INE528508043 9.25% 06-Oct-2017 | 06-Oct-2027 1000 1,000.00 -
‘Total 1,500.00 260.00
Of which Current maturities have been classified under other Current Liabilities (Refer Note - -
1,500.00 260.00

Long Term borrowings (NCDs)

Repayment terms of Unsecured non-convertible redeemable perpetual debentures are as follow.

ISIN number Rate Issue Date | Nedemption No. of | 1< at 31 March 2018 | As at 31 March 2017
Date NCDs

INES28508050 9.75% | 26-Dec-2017 | _ Perpetual 200 200.00 2

INE528508068 10.00% | 07-Feb-2018 | Perpetual 250 250.00 .

Total 450.00 :




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to financial statements (Continued)
as on 31 March 2018

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Millions) As at As al
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
34 Deferred tax Assets / Liabllties
Deferred tax labillties
Amortised loan origination costs 204.24 63.22
Difference belween book and tax depreciation 1.07) 0.33
Total (A) 203.17 63.55
Deferred fuy assels
Provision for standard ussets 44.96 17.80
Amortised processing fees 105.94 41.79
Provision for Gratuily 1.94 1.26
Provision for Non performing assets 16.83 15.47
Others 10 54 9.15
Total (B) 180.21 85.47
Deferred Tax (Asset)/Liability (A-B) 22.96 (21.92)
33 Other long-term liab.litics
Unarrartised processing fees 120.63 52.84
Interest accrued but nol due on bonowings 87.35 156.04
Unreulised gain oh foan transfer transaclions 3.96 41.99
211.94 250.87
3.6 Long-term pravisicns
Provision for employue benefils
Gratuity (Refer note no. 3.2713) 4.79 3.3
Compensated leave absences 143 0.75
Deferred banus 10.64 9.50
Other Provisions:
Provision for non performing assets 1571 2,82
Provision for standlard asscts 76.03 39.06
Provision (or rastruciured Joan 4.54 4.66
Provision for credit loss on securitisation 9.56 35.74

118.70 95.66




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to financial statements (Continued)

as on 31 March 2018
(Currency : Indian Rupees in Millions)
As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
3.7 Short-term borrowings
Secured
Bank overdraft 1,592.65 1,018.53
[Secured by pari pasu charge on receivables of the company]
Unsecured
Loans from a related party (repayable on demand) (Refer note no. 3.25(ii)) 1,274.98 732.47
[repayable on demand at rate of 9% p.a.]
2,867.63 1,751.00
3.8  Trade payables
Trade payables
(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises
i) Acceptances -
ii ) Others - -
a. Related Parties (Refer note no. 3.25(ii)) 121.22 51.81
b. Others (includes sundry creditors and provision for expenses) 418.09 338,99
539.31 390.80
3.9  Other current liabilities
Current maturities of long term secured debt
Term loan from bank [Refer note 3.55(a)] 2,488.72 1,520.83
Term loan from others [Refer note 3.55(b)] 542.00 -
Non-convertible debentures - (Refer note 3.3A, 3.3B and 3.3C) - 1,000.00
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 279.52 148.47
Income received in advance 1.84 0.46
Unamortised processing fees 182.54 67.91
Other Payables
Accrued salaries and benefits 33.70 4275
Withholding taxes, service tax, GST and other taxes payable 96.04 25.47
Book overdraft 1,212,11 280.11
Provision for capital expenditure 3.59 0.50
Others 8.48 2.94
Unrealised gain on loan transfer transactions 30.47 158.83
4,879.01 3,248.27
3.10 Short-term provisions
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity (Refer note 3.27B) 0.77 0.50
Compensated absences 0.24 0.24
Deferred bonus 17.85 15.95
Other Provisions :
Provision for non performing assets 2234 1.48
Provision for standard assets 52.65 12.36
Provision for taxation (Net of advance tax Rs.392.71 million; Previous
year:Rs.311.93 million ) 31.02 26.21
124.87 56.74
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to financial statements (Continued)
as on 31 March 2018

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Millions)

3.12

Long-term loans and advances
(considered good, unless stated otherwise)
Secured

Receivable from financing business

- Standard Assets
- Sub-standard Assets
- Doubtful Assets

Unsecured

Receivables from financing business
- Standard Assets
- Sub-standard Assets

Other loans and advances
(Unsecured considered good)
Rental deposits
Unamortised loan origination cosls

Advance income taxes (net of provision for Tax Rs 0.39 million;

Previous year Rs. 0.58 million)
MAT credit entitlement

3.13 Other non-current assets

(Unsecured considered good)

Deferred Consideration on loan transfer transactions

Ry, WG s
“ Y g . L
~ IV D1 2rean st 1"-8;'_",.- "”

As at
31 March 2018

As at
31 March 2017

13,043.06 5,137.10
217.81 28.23
18.53 -
13,279.40 5,165.33
5,891.23 2,434.03
31.38 24.74
5,922.61 2,458.77
57.10 3.67
225.88 78.59
2.40 0.05
56.40 -
6,264.39 2,541.08
19,543.79 7.706.41
3.96 42.00
3.96 42.00




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to financial statements (Continued)
as on 31 March 2018

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Millions) As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
3.14  Trade receivables
Debtors outstanding for a period exceeding six months -

Other debts
Unsecured, considered good 12.14 -
12.14
3.15 Cash and bank balances
Cash and Cash equivalents
Balances with Banks
- in Current accounts 213.73 7.88
Other Banks Balances
- Short term deposits with banks (Refer note 3.28) 20.00 64.33
(Other bank deposits with maturity more than 3 months and less than 12 months)
233.73 72.21
3.16  Short-term loans and advances
(considered good, unless stated otherwise)
Secured
Receivable from financing business
- Standard Assets 3,958.24 4,005.08
- Sub-standard Assets 25.44 1.32
- Doubtful Assets 6.27 -
3,989.95 4,006.40
Unsecured
Receivables from financing business
- Standard Assets 9,208.56 3,098.38
- Sub-standard Assets 46,59 7.68
9,255.15 3,106.06
Other loans and advances
(Unsecured considered good)
Deposits- others 0.13 0.13
Prepaid expenses 0.90 0.74
Unamortised loan origination costs 358.59 104.09
Loans and advances to employees 0.63 0.42
Input tax credit 135.94 29.01
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for valug to be received 28.24 49,52
9,779.58 3,289.97
13,769.53 7,296.37
3.17  Other current assets
(Unsecured, considered good)
Accrued interest on Inter-corporate deposits 0.03 0.02
Accrued interest on loans 19.89 17.18
Accrued interest on loans not due 337.21 188.31
Deferred Consideration on loan transfer transactions 30.47 158.83
387.60 364.34

Chartered Ac

A
\K\\\“Q?fﬁ?s-ﬂ-:.‘l- SOV

NE_ Mm%




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to financial statements (Continued)
Jfor the year ended 31 March 2018

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Millions)

3.18 Fee and commission income

Loan processing fees and other fees

3.19 Interest Income

On loans
On fixed deposits
On others

3.20 Other income

Miscellaneous income

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

272.12 187.20
272.12 187.20
3,378.95 2,338.10
1.78 0.02
0.04 0.04
3,380.77 2,338.16
23.33 9.98
23.33 9.98




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to financial statements (Continued)
Jfor the year ended 31 March 2018

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Millions)

3.21

3.23

3.23A

Employee benefits expense
Salaries, wages and bonus (Refer note 3.30)

Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer note 3.27A)

Staff welfare expenses

Finance costs ’

Interest on debentures [Refer note 3.25(ii)]

Interest on Subordinated Debt

Interest on term loan

Interest on bank overdraft

Interest on loan from related party [Refer note 3.25(ii)]
Discount on Non Convertible Debentures

Discount on commercial paper

Interest on shortfall in payment of Advance Income Tax
Bank charges

Other expenses

Advertisement and business promotion
Auditors' remuneration (Refer Note 3.23A)
Bad- debts and advances written off
Commission and brokerage
Communication

Computer software

Corporate Social Responsibility Expense
Directors' sitting fees

Electricity charges (Refer note 3.30)
Legal and professional fees

Loan origination costs amortised

Office expenses

Printing and stationery

Provision for standard assets

Provision for restructured advances
Provision for non performing assets
Provision for credit loss on securitisation
Rates and taxes

Rating Support Fees

Rent (Refer note 3.30)

Repairs and maintenance - others

ROC expenses

Service tax expenses

Stamp duty

Travelling and conveyance
Miscellaneous expenses

Auditors' remuneration:
As Statutory Auditors
Towards reimbursement of expenses

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

315.64 19829
15.90 7.68
8.07 9.74
339.61 215.71
304.47 434.60
87.83 23.18
819.70 557.09
49.36 19.67
301,98 112.07
3.84 972
7.49 .
0.28 1.19
25.84 3.67
1,600.79 1,161.19
7.70 3.07
1.72 1.62
287.20 225,54
2.59 0.94
8.35 1.35
1.03 0.05
2.50 0.50
0.44 0.40
4.45 1.41
251.35 114.20
422.78 231.10
6.58 160
4.87 163
71.25 9.65
(0.12) 2.91
29.76 (23.79)
(26.19) 30.14
0.85 0,27
0.22 12.50
40.05 10,25
2.11 0.61
0.00 (0.07)
69.10 21,31
14.79 773
20.85 9,39
10.68 1.51
1,240.91 665.82
1.66 151
0.06 0.11
1.72 1.62




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the fi ial stat ts (Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2018

(Currency: Indian rupees in Miilion)

324 Segment reporting

The Company is regislered with the Reserve Bank of India as a Non Banking Financial Company engaged in the business of lending and financing. All other
activities of the Company revolve around the main business. Since the business operations of the Cuinpany are primarily concentratéd in India, the Company is
considered to operate only in the domestic segment. As the Compuny's business activity falls within a primary busi 2] the fi ial are
reflective of the information required under Accounting Standard 17 on Segment Reporting notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014

3.25  Disclosure as required by Accounting Stundard (AS) — 18 on “Related Partly Disclosures” notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013

(i) List of related partics and relationship:

Edelcap Securities Limited - Holding Company
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited — Ultimate nolding Company

Name of related parties by whom control is exercised

Auris Corporate Centre Limited (merged with Ecap Equities Limited w.e f 1™ April 2017)
ECL Finance Limiled

EdelGive Foundatior:

Edelweiss Comimodities Services Limited

Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited

Fellow Subsidiaries
(with whom transactions liave taken place)

FEdelweiss Business Services Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Web Services Limited)
EFSL Trading Limited (Formerly known as EFSL Commodities Limited )

Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited (Formerly known as Arum Investments Private Limited)
Eternity Business Centre Limited (merged with Ecap Equities Limited we.f 1™ April 2017)

Key Managemend Personnel

Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited
Edelweiss Securities Limited
Edeiweiss Broking Limited

Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited

Olive Business Centre Limited (merged with Ecap Equities Limited w.e.f 1 April 2017)

Ecap Equities Limited

Edelweiss General Insurance Company Limited

Mr. Arun Kumnar Nayyar

|'@ 'ransactions with relnted parties @

As at

As at

Nal T i o
alure of Transaction Reluted Party Name 31 March 2018 1 March 2017

Capital Account Transaction during the year:

Eauity shares issued to Edelweiss Financial Setvices Limited 50,00 -
Ldelcap Securities Limited 50.00
Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited (Fornerly
known as Arum Investments Private Limited) 3000

Securilies premium received from Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 450.00
Edelcap Securities Limited 450.00 -
Edelweiss Finvest Private Limiled (Formerly !
known as Arum Investments Private Limited) 234.00

Non convertible debentures issued to Ecap Equities Limited 440.00

Assigniment of loan portfolio from Edelweiss Housing Finance Linuted - 1,005 51

Current account transactions:

Lvans teken from (refer note 3.25A(2)) Edelweiss Financial Satvices Limited - 33302
Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited 5,171.46 3,472.40

Loans repaid Lo (refer note 3 25A(2)) Edelweiss Financial Services Limmted - 429,13
Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited 4,628.94 2,739.93
EFSL Trading Limited (Formerly known as 290.00
EFSL Commodilies Limited }

) ~ EFSL Trading Limited (Foimeriy kiown as
Inierest E L e - 7.03
nierest Expenses on loan fiom EFSL Commodities Limited )

Edelweiss Financial Services Limiled - 193
Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited 301,98 103.11

interest Expenses on Non convertible debentures Edelweiss Coramodities Services Limited 3123
LCL Fnance Lirited 1.74

Legal & Professional Fees Fdelweiss Housing Finance Limited 135.46 4867
Edelweiss Business Services Limited
(Formerly knowr as Edelweiss Web Services 42.43 024
Limited)

Service Fee Expenses Edelweiss Honsing Finance Limited 0.03
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Conlinued)
For the year ended 31 March 2018

(Currency: Indian rupees in Million)

(i) Transactions with related parties (Continued)
" As at As at
Nature of T t Related P N
LD Ry b clated Party Name 31 March 2018 31 Mareh 2017
Reimbursement paid to Edelweiss Financial Services Limited - 65.76
Edelweiss Business Services Limited
(Formerly known as Edelweiss Web Services 6.11 7184
Limited)
Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited 3.88 902
Reimbursement received from ECL Finance Limited 0.89
Cost reimbursement paid tv Ldelweiss Financial Szrvices Limited 1.11 1.92
Ede!weiss Business Services Limited
(Formerly known as Edeiweiss Web Services - 006
Limited)
Fdelweiss Commoditics Services Limited 3.69 2.16
Etemity Business Centre Lirmited - 624
Ecap Equities Limited 10.85 -
ECL Finance Limited 0.16 -
Edelweiss Broking Limited 1.69 -
Edelweiss Global Wealth Management 0.68 )
Limited '
Edelweiss Securities Limited 0.67
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited 4.69
Sale of Fixed Aszels ECL Finance Limited 0.02
Edelweiss Broking Limited 0.06 -
Edelweiss Global Wealth Management 0.03
Limited i
Cosl reimbursement Receivad fiom ECL Finance Limited 3.42
Edelweiss Broking Limiled 001 -
Edelweiss Firancial Services Lithited 0.04
Edeiweiss Business Services Limited
(Formerly known as Edelweiss Web Services 0.17
Limited)
Edeiweiss Housing Finance Limited 0.43 -
EFSL Trading Limited (Formerly known as 0.61 B
EFSL Commodities Limited !
Edelweiss General Lisurance Company 1.84
Premium Expenses Limited ’
Commission & Brokerage Expenses Edelweiss [nvestment Adviser Limited - 095
Edelweiss Broking Limited 37.68
Donation : EdclGive Foundation 2.50 .50
Rating fee paid Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 0.22 12.50
Mr. Arun Kumar Nayyar
Remuneration paid 1o (refer note 3.25A(3)) 19.50 1432
Director nomination deposit recerved from Edelcap Sceurities Limited - 030
Prepaid Expense Edelwess Financial Services Limited 071
Balances with related parties:
Non convertible debentures (at face value) held by Edelweist Commodtizs Sefvices Limited 479.00 -
Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited 3.00 -
ECL Finance Limited 1,250.00 -
Short term berrowings from Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited 1,274.98 73247
(refer note 3.254(2))
Tnterest accrued and due on EFSL Tiading Limited (Formerly known as 049
bosrowings from EFS1. Commodities | imited )
e ¢ hnrlt‘rul AI‘ s z
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Noles to the financial statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2018

(Currency: Indian rupees in Million)

(ii) Transactions with related parties (Continued)

0 A As nt As at
Nature of T'ransaction Related Party Name 31 March 2018 11 March 2017

Interest Payable on debentures to Edelweiss Commodities Sarvices Limited 24.07 -
Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited 0.03

Trade Payables Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 0.24 -
Edclweiss Housing Finance Limited 91.93 51 46
Edelweiss Securities Limited 0.06 .
Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited 0.09 -
Edelweiss Business Szrvices Limited
(Formerly known as Edelweiss Web Services 24.66 03s
Limited)
Ecap Equities Limited 1.92 -
ECL Finance Limited 1.47 .
Edelweiss Broking Limited 0.83 -
Edelweiss Global Wealth Management 0.02 .

Trads Receivables ECL Finance Limited 5.42 .
Edclweiss Broking Limited 0.08 -
Edelweiss Buriness Services Limited
(Formerly known as Edelveiss v/eb Services 0.18 -
Limited)
Edelweiss Securities Limitec 0,02 -
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited 6.38 -
EFSL Trading Limited (Formerly known 2s 0.01
EFSL Commodities Limited ) '

Nomination deposits - Payables Edelcap Securities Limited 0.60 0.60

Advances to others Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited - 0.03

Nomiration deposits - Receivables Edelcap Securities Limited 0.10 010

Note : 3.25A

1 Previous year figures have been recasted / restated wherever necessary

2 The Intra group Company loans are generally in the nalure of revolving demand loans. Loan taken/repaid from/to related parties are disclosed based on the
maximum incremental amount taken and repaid during the reporting period

3 Information relaling 1o remuneration paid to key managerial person mentioned abuve excludes provision made for gratuity, leave encashment, bonus ard
deferred bonus which are provided for group of employees on an overall basis Thcsx‘ are included on cash basis The variable compensation included
herein is on cash basis

4 The above list contain name of only those related parties with whom the Company lias andertaken transactions for the year ended 31 March 2018 and 31
March 2017
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2018

(Currency: Indian rupees in Million)

3.26 Earnings per share

In accordance with Accounting Standatd 20 on earnings per shares as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companias Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 , the computation of earnings per share is set out below:

T'articulars

a) Shareholders earnings (as per statement of profit and loss)

b) Caleulation of weighved average number of Equity Shares of Re 10 each:

- Number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year

- Number of equity shares issued during the year

Total number of equity shares cutstanding ai the end of the year

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (based on the date
of issue of shares)

Basic and diluted earnings per share (in Rupees) (a/b)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

316.86 31945
3,29,50,000 2,99,50,000
1,00,00,000/ 30,00,000
4,29,50,000 3,29,50,000
3,63,88,356 3,17,60,685

8.71 10.08

The basiz and diluted earnings per share arc the same as there are no dilutive potenti] equity shares issued or oulstanding as at 31 March 2018 and as al 31 March 2017

3.27  Disclosure pur fo A ing Stundard 15 (Revised)-Employee bevefits

A)  Defined contribution plan (Provident fund):

lod in “E
I3

_henefit

Amount of Rs 13 05 million (prexious yea: Ps.5 73 million) ic recognised &s expenses and i

B)  Defined benefit plan (Grotuity):

n

d in the

I
ploy

The following tables susimarize the compunents of the net employce bencfit exp T
recognized in the balance sheet for the Gratuity benefit plan

Statement of profit and loss

Net employee benefit expenses recognized in the statesment of profit & loss

of profit and loss and the funded status and amounts

Current service cost

Initerest on defined beneiit obligation
Past service cost

Actuarial losses

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

1.30 086
0.24 i 016
0.22 -

0.24 0.72
106 1.74

Total included in 'Emplayee Benefit Expenses’

Balance Sheet )

Reconcilation of 1) vhwvedd Benefit Obligation (DBO) are o3 follows:

Present value of DBO at siart of year
Interest cost ’
Current service cost
Employ '['rausfelr n
Past service cost
Benefit paid
Actuarial Loss:

For the yesr ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 Marzh 2017

3.63 211
0.24 016

1.36 0386

0.02 003

0.22 .
(0.15) (0.25)
0.24 072

5.56 363

Present value of DO at end of year

067 =%
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes (o the financial statements (Continued)
TFor the year ended 31 March 2018

(Cunency: Indian rapaes in Million)

3.27 Disclosure p tiw A Standard 15 (Revised)-Employee bencfits (Continued)
Changes in the fair value of plan assals are a3 follows:
For (he year ended For the year erded
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year NA NA
Acquisition adjusiment NA NA
Expected retum on plan asset NA NA
Centributions NA NA
Beneits paid NA NA
Actuarial gain/(loss): NA NA I
 Faiv aabue of plan assets at the end of the year NA L NA ]
Net liability / (nsset) recognised in the Balance Sheet
For the year ended Fur the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Present vaiue of DBO 5.56 3.63
Fair value of plan assets = .
Amount recognized in balance shect - (assets)/liability 5.56 363
I OF which, skiart terni provision 0.77 0.50
Experience adjnstment :
As at As at As at As at
31 March 2018 3! Mach 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 2015
Defined Benefit Obligation 5.56 363 241 0,03
Fair value of plan sssets - - - -
Surplus / (Deficit) (5.56) (3.63) 211) (063
O plan liabilities: {ain)/ loss 0.36 0.57 017 NA®
* Being Lhe first actuarial valuation
Principle hetuarial assumpiians at the balance sheot dnte:
As al As at
, 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Discount rate current 7.00% 6,607
Salary escalation current 7.00% 700%
Employees atirivion rate (bascd on categories) 13-60% 11-60%
Mortality Rate 1ALM 2006-08 (Ul1.) TALM 2006-UB (LiiL)
Expected avernge remaining working life of enaployees 3 years 4 yeas

328 Encumbrances’ on fixed deposiis held by the Company

Fixed deposit of Rs. 20 ndllion have been given as margin against bank guarantee issued by State Bank of India i favour of BSE Linuted for public issuance of Non

wonvertible debenture by the commpany.

{Previous Year : Fixed deposit of Rs. 64.33 rullion have been given as crzdit enhancement lowards Securitization )

Lund

a) Corporale gaurantee given by the Company in relation to securitisation \ransaction is Rs. 728.98 million {Previous year : Rs. 322.58 mil'ion )

The Company has received deimand notices from tax autharities on aceount of disallowance of expendiiure for earming exempt income under Section 14A of Income Tax
Act 1961 read with Kule 8D of the Income Tax Rules, 1962, The company has filed uppealss and s defending its position. Based on the faverable autcome n Appellate
prozecdings in the past and as advised by the tw advisors, company is rexsonably cottain ahuut ststaining its position in the pending; cases, hence the possihility of

outflow of fesources emoodying economic vencfits on this ground is remole

b) Esrimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capilal account nat of advances and not provided fo. is Rs. 22.84 million
(Previous Year Rs.1 02 million).

¢)  Undrawn committed credit lines Rs. 863.13 million as at March 31, 2018 {Previous year: Rs. 59,73 mitlion)

330 Cost sharing

-

Edelweiss Financial Services Lintited, being the ultimate holding Company along with fellow neurs expands

like common semer management

compensution cost (FY 2017-18), Group miedichim, maurancs, reat, ¢lectricity charges ete. which s Far the comman benefit of itself and its certain subsidiaties, fellow

pended is b

subsidiaries mcluding the Company Tius cost-so d by the C

y on the bisis of number of employees, time spent by employees of other

Companies, actual identifications eic. On the same lines, employees’ costs expendad (if any) by the Conpany for the benufit of Fellow subsidiaries is recovered by the

Company. Accordingly, and as identified by the
received based on Lie management's best estimate

the exp
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2018
(Currency: Indian rupees in Million)

3.31 Details of dues to micro enterprise and small enterprise

Trade payables includes Rs. Nil (Previous year: Rs. Nil) payable to “supplicrs” registered under the micro, small and medium
enterprises Development Act, 2006. No interest has been paid / is payable by the Company during the year to “suppliers” registered
under this Act. The aforementioned is based on the responses received by the Company to its inquiries with suppliers with regard
to applicability under the said Act.

3.32  Derivatives and Long Term Contracts
The Company has a process whereby periodically all long term contracts are assessed for material foreseeable losses. At the year
end, the Company has reviewed and ensured that adequate provision as required under any law / accounting standards for material
foresecable losses on such long term contracts has been made in the books of account. The Company has not entered into any
derivative contracts during the year. (Previous year Rs. Nil) and hence detailed disclosure is not required.

3.33 Foreign currency
The Company has not undertaken any foreign currency transaction during the year ended 51 March 2018 (Previous year: Rs Nil).

3.34 [Investments

Particulars As at As af
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
1) . Value of Investments
1} Gross Value of Investments
a) In India 3 :
b} Outside India = -
ii) Provisions for Depreciation
a) In India - -
b) Outside India - -
iii) Net Value of Investments
a) In India . s i ” ;
b) Outside India - 8
2) Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments.
i) Opening balance - -
ii) Add : Provisions made during the year -
iii) Less : Write-off / write-back of excess provisions during the year - -
iv) Closing balance - -
3.35 Capital to risk assets ratio (CRAR)
Particulars As at aisl
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
D CRAR (%) 16.36% 18.67%
i) CRAR - Tier [ capital (%) 11.89% 17.90%
iii) CRAR - Tier II Capital (%) 4.47% 0.77%
iv) Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-1I capital 1,500.00 250.00
V) Amount raised by issue of perpetual debt instruments 450.00 -
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2018
(Currency: Indian rupees in Million)

3.36 Direct assignment & Securitisation

The Company sells loans through securitisation and direct assignment.
The information on direct assignment of the Company as an originator in respect of par transaction done during the year is given

Particulars asiat e

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Total number of loan assets under par structure 72 195
Total book value of loan assets 479.42 761.02
Sales consideration received 479.42 761.02

The information on direct assignment of the Company as an originator in respect of transaction done on premium during the year is

Particulars asgt As at

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Total number of loan assets under par structure 1712 1752
Total book value of loan assets 29.93 : 52.16
Sales consideration received 30.66 52.7

Disclosures in the notes to the accounts in respect of securitisation transactions as required under revised guidelines on
securitization transactions issued by RBI vide circular no.DNBS. PD.No.301/3.10. 01/2012-13 dated August 21, 2012

Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
1 No. of SPVs sponsored by the NBFC for securitisation transactions 3 4
2 Total amount of securitised assets as per books of the SPVs sponsored by the 592.29 2372.15
3 Total amount of exposures retained by the NBFC to comply with MRR as on the
date of balance sheet 59.23 237.22
a) Off-balance sheet exposures
- First loss 39.23 163.35
- Others - -
b) On-balance shect exposures ' '
- First loss - ' 73.87
- Others - -
4 Amount of exposures to assignment transactions other than MRR 260.56 ' 194.16
a) Off-balance sheet exposures
i) Exposure to own securitisations
- First loss ' 260.56 159.23
- Others - -
ii) Exposure 1o third party securitisations
_ - First loss = -
- Others oo
b) Oun-balance sheet exposures
i) Exposure to own se ecuritisations
- First loss - 34.93
- Others - #
ii) Exposure to third party securitisations
- First loss * -
- Others . -
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statemeats (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2018
(Currency: Indian rupees in Million)

Details of Financial Assets sold to Securitisation / Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction

As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
i) No. of accounts Nil Nil
ii) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold to SC/RC Nil Nil
iii) Aggregate consideration Nil Nil
iv) Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlicr Nil Nil
years

Particulars

v) Aggregate gain / loss over net book value . Nil Nil

Disclosures in the notes to the accounts in respect of assignmennt transactions

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

1 No. of transactions assigned by the NBFC 5 3

2 Total amount outstanding 920.60 - 680.87

3 Total amount of exposures retained by the NBFC to comply with MRR as on the
date of balance sheet 102.14 75.20
a) Off-balance sheet exposures
- First loss o - -
- Others - -
b) On-balance sheet exposures ) _
- First loss - -
- Others 102.14 75.20

4 Amount of ¢xposures to assignment transactions other than MRR
a) Off-balance sheet exposures
i) Exposure to own assigninents
- First loss - -
- Others - -
ii) Exposure to third party assignments -
- First loss = .
- Others - -
b) On-balance sheet exposures
i) Exposure to own assignments
- First loss - -
- Others - .
i) Exposure to third party assignments
-Firstloss ' -
- Others - -

Details of Assignment transactions undertaken

As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
i) No. of accounts 1,784 1,947
ii) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold 509.35 813.17
iii) Aggregate consideration 510.08 813.72
iv) Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in carlier Nil Mil
years

Particulars

v) Aggregate gain / loss over net book value 0.73 0.55
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Tor the year ended 31 March 2018

(Currency: Indian rupces in Million)

3.37 Details of non-performing Sfinancials assets purchased / sold
Duting the year the Compeny has ncither purchased nor sold any non-performing financials assets (Pravious year : Nil)

. Details of non-performing finuncial assets purchased @

As at Lo
Particulars 31 March
2
31 March 2018 2017
1{(a) No. of accounts purchased during the year Nil Nil
(b) Aggregale outstanding Nil Nil
2|(a) Of these, number of accounts restructured during the year Nil Nil
(b} Apgregate cutstanding Nil Nil
B. Details of Non-performing Financial Assels sold:
|
As at Gy
Particulars 31 March
_ 31 March 2018 2017
1(a) No. of accounts sold Nil Nil
2|(b) Aggregate outstanding Nil Nil
3|(c) Aggregate consideration received Nil Nil

338  Un-hedged foreign carrency risk
There are no un-hedged foreign currency risk as at March 31, 2018 (Previous year Rs. Nil)

339 Operating leases
‘The Company has taken premises on operating lease. Terms of lhie lease include terms for renewal, increase in rents 1n future periods
and term of cancellation, Gross rental expenses for the year ended 31 March 2018 aggregated fo Rs.40.05 million (Previous year Rs.
10.25 million) which has been included under {lie hiead Other expenses — Rent in the statement of profit and loss.

Details of future minimuin lease payments for the non-cancellable operating lease are as follows:

For the year
ended
31 March 2017

For the year
ended
31 March 2018

Minimum lease payments {or non cancellable lease

- not later than one year 22.24 1.18

~ later than one year and not later than five years 19.69 .

- later than five year - J
Fulure minimum lease payments for the non-cancellable operating lease are before sharing of expenses with group companies.

3.40 Fraud Reporting .
‘[here were no instances of fraud identified and reported during the year (Previous Year Nil) as required in terms of Chapter 11 paragraph 5 of
Maonitoring of frauds in NBFCs (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016

3.41 Exposure to real estate sector, both direct and indirect & exposurc to capital market
a) Exposure to real estate sector, both direct and indirect

retail space, multipurpose commercial premises, multi-family residential
buildings, multi-tenanted commercial premises, industrial or warehouse space,
botels, land acquisition, developnient and construction, etc).
(iii) Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and other securitised
a) Residential
b) Commercial real cstate

B. Indirect exposure
Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National Housing Bank (NHB)
and Housing Finance Companics (HFCs)

For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended
31 March 2018 | 31 March 2017
A. Direct exposure

(i) Residentinl mortgages -

Lending fully sceured by morigages on residential proparty that is or will Le 6,283.25 4,336.32

occupicd by the barrower vy that is rented
(i) Commercial real estate -

Lending secured by mmortgages on commercial real estates (office buildings, 9,835.53 4,839.75
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2018

(Currency: Indian 1upees in Millicn)

3.41 Exposure to

b) Exposure

real estate sector, botls direct and indirect & exposure to capital market (continued)

to capital market

Particulars

For the year
ended
31 March 2018

For the year
ended
31 March 2017

ii)

iii)

iv)

v)

vi)

yi)

| wiii)

direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures
and units of equity-oriented mutual funds the corpus of which is not exclusively
invested in corporate debt

advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other secunities or on clean
basis to individuals for invéstment in shares (including 1POs | ESOPs),
converitble bonds, convertible debentures, and units of equity-ortented mutual
funds

advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or
convertible debentures or uriis of equity oriented mutual funds are taken as
primary security

advances for any other puzposes fo the extent secured by the collateral seourity
of shares ar convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity
oriented mutual funds i.2. where the primary security other than shares /
conveitible bonds / convertible debentures / units of equity oriented mutual
funds 'does not fully cover the advances

secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on
behalf of stockbrokers and market makers

loans sanctioned to corportes against the securily of shares / bonds /
debentures or uiher securitizs or on clean basis for meeting promoler’s
contribution to the equity of new sompanies in anticipation of raising resources

bridge loans to companics agains: expected equity flows / issues
all exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered and unregistert d)

3.42  Asset liability management

Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities

Yor the finencial year 2017-18

) Overl Over2 Over3 Over 6
. Upto 30/31 Over 1 year Over 3 years
Particulars month upto 2|months upto 3 months upto | months Over 5 years Total
days upto 3 years upto 5 years
months months 6 months | upto 1 year
Deposits - - - - N = . > E
Advances 1,107.29 1,134,058 1,127.19 3,429.43 0,447.23 9,147.44 2,617.94 7.436.63 | 3244711
Investments - = . - g - - = B
Barrewings 141.33 255.00 493.15 1.832.05 3,176.82 12,596.24 5,459.43 2,842.75 | 26,796.77
Foreign
Currency
Assets - - = = -
Foreign
Currency
Assets - - - = = - -
For the fingncial year 2016-17
—
. Upto 30/31 Over 1 miont) Over 2 months peid GEStR Over 1year upto| Over 3 years
Particulars upto 2 months upto |months upto Over 5 years Total
days upto 3 months 3 years upto 5 years
months 6 months 1year
Deposils - - - - - 5 - u -
Advances 696.85 940.71 1,689.55 1,281.17 2,501.18 2.990.30 1,252.53 3,381.27 14,736.56
invesiments - - - - - - - - .
Borrowings 426.13 569.94 1,135.14 1,130 21 1,010.41 3,041.67 3,286.91 260.00 10,860 41
Foreign
Currency
Assets - - - - £ = -
Foreign
Currency
Assets - - - - -
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Noles to the financial statements (Continued)
For ihe year ended 31 March 2018

(Currency Indian rupees in Million)

3.43  Movements in non performning advances:

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the details of movement of gross Non-performi

NPAs and provision

ng assets (NPAs), aet

For the year For the yecar
Particulars ended ended
31 March 2018 | 31 March 2017
i) Net NPAs to net advances (%) 0.95% 0.36%
if) Movement of NPAs (Gross)
a) Opening balance 61.97 39.76
b) Additions during the year 632.45 191.37
¢) Reductions during the year (348.40) (169.16)
d) Closing balance 346.02 61.97
i) Movement of net NPA
a) Opening balance 53.01 9.91
b) Additions during the year §57.20 4511
¢) Reductions during the year (302.78) (2.01)
d) Closing balance 307.43 53.01
Movement of provisions for NPAs (including provisions on restructured
iv) assets)
a) Opening balance 8.96 29.85
b) Additions during the year 75.25 146.26
¢) Reductions during the year (45.62) (167.15)
d) Closing balance 38.59 8.96

3.44  Details of single borrower limit ar.d group borrower limit exceeded by the Company:
During the year ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017, (he Conipany’s credit exposure to singie borrowers and group
borrowers were within the limits prescribed by the RBI.

3.45 Unsecured Advances
The company has not taken any charge over the rights, licenses, authorisation, etc.. against ansecured loans given to borrowers

3.46 Remuneration of Directors
The company has not entered into any {ransaction with non-execurive directors during the year (Previous year Rs. Nil) except

disclosure made in note 3.63

3.47 Net Profit or Loss for the period, prior period items and changes in uccounting policies
There are no prior period items (Previous year Rs. Nil) snd there are no changes in accounting policies during the year.

348 Accounting Standard 21 -C lidated Financial Statements (CFS)
The company docs not have any subsidiary, associate, or joint venture and hence consolidation is not required

3.49 Details of 'provisions and contingencies'

Break up of 'provisions and contingencies' shown under the head vkpenditure
in statement of profit and loss.

For the year
ended
31 March 2018

For the year
ended
31 March 2017

1) Provisions for depreciation on investiment - -
i) Provision towards NPA (include Restructured assets) 29.64 (20.88)
1ii) Provision made towards income tax * 163.04 169.84
iv) Provision for standard assets 77.25 9.6>
v) " Other provision and contingencies

n) Provision for credit loss on securitisation (26.19) 30.14

Note: * Includes current tax, MAT credit entitlement and deferred tax
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2018

(Currency: Indian rupees in Million)

3.50 Draw Down from Rescrves
No Draw Down from the Statutory Reserves during FY 2017-18 (Previous Year Rs. Nil)

3.51 Concentraticn of deposits, advances, exposures and NPAs

A) Concentration of advances

Total advances to (wenty largest borrowers 2,706.67 1,307.27
94 of advances to twenty largest borroweis to total advances 8.34% 8.87%
B) Concentration of exposures (includes Off balance sheet exposure)
Tatul exposures to twenty largest borrowers / customers 2,774.67 1.307.27
% of exposures to twenty largest borrowers / custoners to total advances 8.25% £.65%
C) Concentration of NPAs

83.33 36.59

Toal exposurcs to top four NPAs
D) Sector-wise NPAs

For the year
ended
31 March 2018

For the yeuv

% of NPAs to total advunces in
that sector

For the year
ended
31 March 2017

For the year

ended ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
1 Agriculture & allied activities 0.00% 0.00%
2 MSME 0.00% 0.00%
3 Corporate bortowers 0.40% 0.43%
4 Serviges 0.66% 0.41%
5 Unsecured personal loans 0.00% 0.00%
6 Auto loans 0.00% 0.00%
7 Other personal loans 0.00% 0.00%
| 3.52  Customer complaints
For the year For the year
4 ended ended
Fardculuss 31 March 2018 | 31 March 2017
(a) No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year H - -
(t) No. of complaints received during the year 70 52
{c) No. of complaints rediessed during the year 57 32
(d) No. of complaints pending at the end of the year 13
3.53 Details of ratings assigned by credit rating agencies
As at 31 March 2018
Instrument category CRISIL SMERA CARE Brickworks Brichworks
i) Long termt instruments
CRISIL SMERA CARE AA BWR AA BWR AA+
- Rating AA/Stable AA/Stable
Amouat 18,000.00 1,000.00 12,500.00 1,000.00 4,500,00
i) Short term: instruments
' Rating CRISIL A+ NA CARE Al+ NA NA
Amount 5,000,00 NA 5,000.00 NA NA
As at 31 March 2017
Instrument category CRISIL CRA Brickworks
1) Long term instrumeuts
CRISIL [ICRA] AA BWR AA+
Rating AA/Stable
Amount . 10,000.00 31,500.00 4,500,00
i) Short term instruments
Rating NA [ICRA] A+ NA
| Amount NA 6.000.00 NA

Note: 1. Only utilized credit rating details are provided

2. There were no changes in any of the ratings or outlook during the year
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2018

(Currency:

3.55 a)

Indian rupees in Million)

Details of term lcan taken from Banks

As at March 31 2018

Rate of [nterest
Month of Maturity / 8.00 - 8.99% 9.00% to 9.99% 10.00% to 10.99% Total
Repayment
December-2022 257.33 B - 257.33
September-2022 350.08 - - 350.08
July-2022 31.25 B 31.25
June-2022 350.08 B 350.08
May-2022 18.75 - - 18.75
April-2022 31.25 - - 31.25
March-2022 381.33 - - 381.33
February-2022 18.75 18.75
January-2022 31.25 - 31.25
December-2021 381.33 - - 381.33
November-2021 18.75 - - 18.75
October-2021 31.25 B - 31.25
September-2021 381.33 B - 381.33
August-2021 18.75 - 18.75
July-2021 31.25 - 31.25
June-2021 381.33 B - 381.33
May-2021 18.75 - - 18.75
April-2021 31.25 - 31.25
March-2021 427.00 105.50 - 532.50
February-2021 18.75 - - 18.75
January-2021 31.25 B B 31.25
December-2020 515.25 109.40 - 624.65
Nevember-2020 18.75 - 18.75
October-2020 31.25 - - 31.25
September-2020 660.49 109.40 - 769.89
August-2020 18.75 - - 18.75
July-2020 31.25 - - 31.25
June-2020 669.49 109.40 769.89
May-2020 18.75 B - 1875 |
April-2020 64.58 - - 64.58
March-2020 660.49 109.40 - 769.89
February-2020 18.75 - 18.75
January-2020 64.58 - B 64.58
December-2019 660.49 109.40 - 769.89
November-2019 18.75 - - 18.75
October-2019 64.58 - E 64.58
September-2019 660.49 109.40 - 769.89
Augusi-2019 18.75 - 18.75
July-2019 64.58 - 64.58
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2018

(Currency: Indian rupees in Million)

3.565 a)
As at March 31 2018

Details of term loan taken from Banks (continued)

Nature of security and terms of repayment for secured borrowings (other than debentures):
All secured long term borrowings are secured by way of hyp
and corporate guarantee from the ultimate holding company an

As at March 31 2017

Rate of Interest
Month of Maturity / 8.00 - 8.99% 9.00% to 9.99% 10.00% to 10.99% Total
Repayment
June-2019 660.49 109.40 - 769.89
May-2019 18.75 - - 18.75
April-2019 64.58 E - 64.58
March-2019 660.50 109.40 - 769.90
February-2019 18.75 - - 18.75
January-2019 64.59 - - 64.59
Decemuer-2018 401.04 109.40 - 510.44
November-2018 18.75 - - 18.75
October-2018 64.58 25.00 - 80.58
September-2018 331.25 109.40 - 440.65
August-2018 18.75 - 18.75
July-2018 33.33 25.00 - 58.33
June-2018 331.25 109.40 - 440.65
April-2013 33.33 25.00 58.33
Total 10,212.02 1,383.90 - 11,595.92
Current Maturity 2,488.72
Long Term Borrowings 9,107.20
Total 11,595.92

othecation of receivables i.c. ioans and advances
d/or holding company.

| Rate of Interest

Month of Maturity / 8.00 - 8.99% 9.00% to 9.99% 10.00% to 10.99% Total
Repayment

March-2022 31.25 - 31.25
Dacember-2021 - 31.25 - 31.25
September-2021 - 31.25 - 31.25
June-2021 : 31.25 . 31.25
March-2021 46.82 140.63 5.98 193.43
December-2020 105.93 187.50 6.25 299.68
September-2020 140.63 187.50 6.25 334.38
June-2020 140.63 187.50 6.25 334.38
March-2020 140.63 187.50 37.50 365.63
December-2019 140.63 187.50 37.50 365.63
September-2019 140.63 187.50 37.50 365.63
June-2019 - ~ 140.63 187.50 37.50 365.63
March-2019 140.63 187.50 37.50 365.63
December-2018 140.63 187.50 37.50 365.63
October-2018 - 25.00 - 25.00
September-2018 140.63 208.34 37.50 386.47
July-2018 - 25.00 - 25.00
June-2018 140.63 208.33 37.50 386.46
April-2018 - 25.00 - 25.00
_Marcl1—2()18 140.62 177.08 37.50 355.20
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 Murch 2018

(Currency: indian rupees in Miilion)

3.55 a) Details of term loan taken from Banks (contirnued)
As at March 31 2017
Rate of Interest
Month of Maturity / 8.00 - 8.99% 9,00% to 9.99% 10.00% to 10.99% Total
Repayment
January-2018 - 25.00 - 25.00
December-2017 140.63 177.08 37.50 355.21
October-2017 - 25.00 - 25.00
September-2017 140.63 177.08 37.50 355.21
July-2017 - 25.00 - 25.00
June-2017 140.63 177.08 37.50 355.21
April-2017 - 25.00 - 25.00
Total 2,121.56 3,253.12 474.73 5.849.41
Current Maturity 1.520.83
Long Term Borrowings 4,328.58
Total 5,849.41
3.55 b) Details of term loan taken from SIDBI
As at March 31 2018
Rate of Interest
Month of Maturity / 8.00 - 8.99% 9,00% to 9.99% 10.00% to 10.99% Total
Repayment
March-2023 52.50 - - 52.50
December-2022 52.50 - 52.50
September-2022 52.56 - 52.50
June-2022 52.50 - - 52.50
April-2022 89.00 - - 89.00
March-2022 52.50 - - 52.50
January-2022 83.00 E E 83.00
December-2021 52.50 - 52.50
Octlober-2021 83.00 - - 83.00
September-2021 52.50 - - 52.50
July-2021 83.00 - - 83.00
June-2021 52.50 52.50
April-2021 83.00 - E 33.00
March-2021 52.50 - - 52.50
January-2021 83.00 - B 83.00
December-2020 52.50 - - 52.50
October-2020 83.00 - 83.00
September-2020 52.50 B 52.50
July-2020 83.00 - - 83.00
June-2020 52.50 - - 52.30
April-2020 83.00 - - 83.00
March-2020 52.5C - - 52.50
January-2020 83.00 - - 83.00
December-2019 52.50 - - 52.50
October-2019 33.00 - - 83.00
September-2019 52.50 - - 52.50
Juiy-2019 83.00 - - 83.00
June-2G19 52.50 - - 52.50
April-2019 $3.00 - 83.00
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2018

(Currency: Indian rupees in Million)

Nature of security and terms of repayment for secured borrowings (other than debentures):

3.55 b) Details of term loan taken from SIDBI (continued)

As at March 31 2018
Rate of Interest

Month of Maturity / 8.00 - 8.99% 9.00% to 9.99% 10.00% to 10.99% Total
Repayment
March-2019 52.50 - - 52.50
January-2019 83.00 - - 83.00
December-2018 52.50 - - 52.50
October-2018 83.00 - - 83.00
September-2018 52.50 - E 52.50
July-2018 83.00 - - 83.00
June-2018 52.50 B - 52.50
April-2018 83.00 - - 83.00
Total 2,467.00 - - 2,467.00
Current Maturity 542.00
Long Term Borrowings 1,925.00
Total 2,467.00

All secured long term borrowings are secured by way of hypothecation of receivables i.e. loans and advances
and corporate guarantee from the ultimate holding company and/or holding company.

As at March 31 2017

Rate of Interest

Month of Maturity / 8.00 - 8.99% 9.00% to 9.99%

Repayment

10.00% to 10.99%

Total

- Nil Nil

Nil

Nil
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the [l ial (Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2018

(Currency: Indian rupecs in Million)

3.56

.57

3.58

3.59

3.60

3.61

3.62

Corporale social responsibilty ( CSR)

As per the provisions of §action 135 of Companies Act 2013,

a) Grass Amount requiresd to be spent by the Company during the year was Rs, 7,19 million; {Previous year Rs. 3.8 million)

b) Amount spent during the year on :

Particulars In cash Yel to be paid In Total
cash
i Construclion/ acquisilion of any assels 7 .
i on purpose other (han (i) above 2,50 2.50
(2.50) 3 (2.50)

1. The Company is a subsidiary of Edelcap Securities Limited and ullimate holding Company is Edulweiss Financial Services Limited. Edelweiss group is conscious of its

Corporale Social R bility and, had ing

blished a CSR arm, "EdelGive Foundaticn” in the year 2008, As an amount of Rs.177.84 million (Previous

year: Rs.|15.68 million) (representing more Ihan 2% of (he consolidated profit of the group) was spenl towards CSR activities during the year ended March 31, 2018, the

Company has not incurred the prescribed CSR expenditure on a standalone basis during the year ended March 31,2018,

2. Figures in bracket are in respect of previous year.

Reglstralion vbialned from other finunclal sector regulators
‘The company is nat registered under any other regulator other Ikan Reserve Bank of India

Details of financing parent company products - Nl (Previous yer - Nil)

Disclosure of pensliles imposed by RBI and other regulators
No penalties have been imposed by RB1 znd other Regulators during the financial year 2017-18 (Previous year - Nil)

Overseas Assets (for those with Joint Ventures and Subsidinries shroad)
There are no overseas assel owned by the company (Previous year - Nii)

Disclosure under Regulation 53(1) of SEBI (Listing Obligatlons aud Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

Related Party transautiony
Pai lars

As at Asal

Loans nind ddvinges nalure of loiis Lo subsidiaries
Lamns and advances in the nature of loans to assaciates
Lamy mnd pdvances o the nature of loans to firs/companies in which direclors are interested

Investients by Ihe loaree in the shares of parent pany and subsidiary P when the pany has 1nade a loan er
advance in the nature of lodn

31 Morch 2018 31 March 2017

Note to (he halance sheet of 8 non-deposit taking non-banking financisl Company

Note to the balance sheet of a non-deposit taking non-banking fine:icial Company as required in terms of paragraph 13 of Master Direclion- Non-Banking Financial
Company- Systematically Importaat Non-Deposit laking Company and Dcposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Dircctions, 2016. (Figures are as at 31 March 2018)

Liabilltles slde:
Amount outstanding
As at Asat
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Particuiars

1) Loans and advances avaiied by NBFC inclusive of interest recrued
thereon bul nol paid

a) Debentuies:

(other than thoze falling within the meaning of Public deposil)

(1) Secured B,143.72 3,267.15
(i) Unsecured 2.675.02 296.86
b) Deferred credils - -
¢) Term loans . ’ 14,077.28 5,6849.41
d) Inier-corporate leans und borowing - -
e) Comumercial paper -
0 Other luans -
13 Lon fromn relaled parties 1,274.98 732.97
2) Bank overdrafl 1,592.65 1,018.53
Assoly sider

2} Break up of loans and ad luding bills ivabl
(other than those included in (3) below)

a) Secured

b) Unsecured

3) Break up of leased assets and stock un hire and niher assels counting lowards AFC activilies
4) Lease assets Including lease rentals under sundry deblors:
(i) Financial lease
(ii) Operating lease

b) Slock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors
(i) Assets on hire
(ii) Repussessed assels

c) Other foans counting towards assel financing Comyany activities
(i) Lonns where asseis have heen repossessed
(i) Other lyans

Amount overdue
Asat As al
3) March 2018 31 March 2017

Amount Outstanding
As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

17,269.35 9,142.18
15,171.76 5,594.38
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes fo the fi lal (Conlinued)
For the year ended 31 March 2018

{Currency: Indian rupees in Million)

3.62  Note (o the balance sheel of a non-deposit taking non-banking financial Company as required in terms of 13 of Master Direction- Non-Banking Financial
Company- S ically Imp Non-Deposil taking Company and Deposil taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016. (Figures are as al 3] March 2018)
(continued)

As at Asal
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

4} Break up of investments
Current investments:

a) Quoled:
(i)  Shares: Equity - =
Preference . -
(ii)  Debentures and bonds -
(i)  Units of mutval funds -
(iv) Governmenl securiies - .
(v) Others . -
b} Unquoted:
(i)  Shares: Equity - -
Preference = .
(ii)  Debentures and bonds -
(iii)  Unils of muiual funds -
(iv) Government securilies - -
(v) Others (pass through certificales) - -
Dretails of ferm loan taken from SIDBI
Long-term i (net of provision)
a) Quoted:
(i)  Shares: Equity -
Preference - -
(i) Debentures and bonds - &
(iii)  Unils of mutual funds -
(iv) Government securities . .
(v) Others - =
b) Unquoled:
(i)  Shares: Equity B
Preference

(ii)  Debentures and bonds
(iii)  Units of mutual funds
(iv) Government securilies - s
{v) Others - .
- Pass through certificates
- Security receipls

5) Borrower group-wise classification of assels financed as jn (2) and (3) above
Amount nel of provislons

Particulars Secured Unsecured Total
As at As at As al Asal Asal As al
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 31 March 2018 31 March 2017

1. Relaled parties**

(a) Subsidiaries - = = = a

{b) Companies in the

same group . _ 5 a % -

{c) Other related . . - % ~ H
2. Other than related 17,171.86 9,105.75 15,107.98 5,570.43 32,279.84 14,676.18
TOTAL 17,171.86 9,105.73 15,107.98 5,570.43 32,279.84 14,676.18

** As per Accounting Standard 18 - Related Party Transactions

6) Investor group-wise classification of all i (current and long-term) in shares and securities (both quoted and unquoted)
Book value
Particulars Market value/break up or fair value or NAV {nel of provisions)
As at As al Asal Asal
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
1) Related parties
(a) Subsidiaries . - - *
(b) Companies in the same group - - - -
(c) Other related parties > 3 . .
2) Other than related parties
TOTAL ] z . E
7) Other information
a) Gross non-performing assels
1) Related parties - .
2) Other than relaled parties 346.02 61.97
b} Nel non-performing assels
1) Related parties . -
2) Other than related parties 307.42 53.01
) Assels acquired in satisfaction of debi -
Note :
1. As defined in paragraph 2(1)(xii} of the Non-Banking Financial Compnay Acceplance of public deposits(Reserve bank) Direction, [998.
3.63  Detalis of with non ive di
Asat Asat
Name of the Director Nature of Transaction 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Mr. Milu! Shah Sitling fees 022 020
Mr. Sanjay Shah Sitting fees 0.22 0.20
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2018

(Currency: Indian rupees in Million)
3.64  There are no amounts due and outstanding to be credited to Investor Education & Protection Fund as at March 31,2018

3.65  Off-Balance sheet SPV sporisored - Nil (Previous year - Nil)

3.66  Disclosures relating to Specified Bank Notes* (SBNs) held and transacied during the period from 08th November 1o 30th December 2016 pursuant to
notification no. G.S.R. 308(E) dated 30th March 2017

Particulars SBNs™ Other denomination notes Total
Closing cash in hand as on 08.11.2016 2.13 0.00 2.13
1+} Permitted receipts - 042 0.42
(-) Permitted payments E - -
{-) Amount deposited in Banks 2.13 0.42 2.55
Closing cash in hand as on 36.12.2016 - 0.00* 0.00"

A- Amcunt is less than 0.01 million
* Tor the purposes of this ciause, the term specitied bank notes (SBNs) means the bank notes of denomination of existing series of the value of five hundred rupees

and on¢ thousand rupees as detined under the notification of Government of India, in the Ministry of Finance, Department of Economic Affairs No. $.0.3407(E),
dated 8th November 2016.

Previous year's figures have been regrouped and reananged wherever necessary confimm to current year's presentation / classification.

Signature to notes forming part of the Financial Statements

pbehrlf of the Board of Directors
Edeiweiss Retail Finance Limited

Ko-Lunris

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLLP
Firm Registiation Number 012754N/N500016
Chartered Accounrtanis

Sharad Agurwail Anil Kothuri Shalinee Mimani
Partner Director Director
Membership No: 118522 DIN: 00177945 DIN : 07404675
Q\WM e 1k He) easndln
Vineet Mahajan Sudipta Majuwimdar
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Mumbai Membership no - A33961
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